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[%3 DESCRIPTION
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

National Valley Bank is an attached, one-story building located
on Staunton's main commercial street. It 1is constructed of granite,
brick and carved limestone. The roof is flat, except for the pro-
truding skylight.

The Bank was designed by the local architectural firm of T. J.
Collins & Son and built in 1903. One of the finest Beaux-Arts
designs in Western Virginia, it was based on ths ancient Roman Arch
of Titus. Another idea for. the design may have come from Boston's
Castle Square Theater which appeared in the December.. 1894 issue of
the Brickbuilder, which was in the library of T. J. Collins & Son's
office. i ' e

Using the triumphal arch form enabled Collins to respect the
two-story scale of the surrounding buildings without compromising
the unity of the classical three-bay facade. The imposts of the
arch are developed into an entablature above the entrance. The attic
story above the entablature is actually a parapet wall capped with
Greek antefixae and decorated with a circular motif set in rectangular
panels. The three-gart classical entablature consists of an undecorated
frieze and architrave and elaborately carved modillion blocks, egg-
and-dart molding and dentils in the cornice. ’

Semi-engaged, fluted columns, of the Corinthian order, flank the
central arched entrance. The large wall spaces between the columns are
reduced by the use of windows topped with elaborate cartouches(in the
left one is the founding date of the bank, 1865, and in the right cne,

~the date of this building, 1903) and small, circular stained-glass

windows set in raised, square pansls.

The main entrance arch is decorated with egg-and-dart molding and
surrounds a semicircular stained-glass window. The door frame is
heavily decorated with carved panels. The original revolving door is
set bzhind the pocket doors which are the main closures.

According to a photograph of the bank in a 1906 news magazine, the
present facade appears to be totally original and unaltered.

The Interior:

The coffered plaster ceiling was done by ths Baltimore firm of
J. G. Valliant & Co. It consists of 12 square panels, separated by
beams decorated with a flattened leaf motif; a2 boss of acanthus
leaves appears at each of the eight beam intersections. Each of these
12 panels is subdivided intoc 9 square panels. The entire ceiling 1is
decorated with an overall honeycomb patiern overlaid with rosettes

“and foliated scrollwork.

(to continuation sheet#l)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The National. Valley Bank has been Staunton's most notable bank since

its founding in November of 186%. Its founder and first president was =
General John FEchols, who served in the Confederate forces during the
Civil War. Due to the postwar economic conditions, Gen. Echols had some
difficulty securing local subscriptions to his new bank and had to journey
to Baltimore in search of stockholders. Here, he solicited from many
prominent citizens, including Johns Hopkins and Enoch Pratt(incidentally,
the Johns Hopkins Hospital was Naltional Valley's largest single share-
holder until the great Baltimore fire of 1904 forced that institution
to sell out to Staunton interests). Over the years, National Valley
Bank's Board of Directors has included many illustrious Stauntonians.
One of the most prominent was Gen. Echols' son, Senator Edward Echols,
who served in both branches of the Virginia legislature and was Lieu-
tenant Governor of Virginia from 1898-1902. Edward Echols also served
as the Bank's third president from 1905-1915.

The National Valley Bank was originally housed in Staunton at the
corner of Beverley and Market Streets. 1In 18795, the Bank merged with
First National Bank of Staunton, but the name National Valley Bank was
retained. It was during the next thirty years that Staunton experienced
its greatest period of growth and expansion and National Valley Bank
grew along with it.

The present building is a monument to the Bank's success. Built in
1903, at a cost of about $50,000, no expense seems to have been spared
to make it a showpiece. Craftsmen were brought in from Baltimore to
make the coffered ceiling. Materials used in the interior included
marble, bronze, mahogany and stained glass. The furniture and fittings
were brought in from Cincinnati.

National Valley Bank is one of Western Virginia's finest examples
of Beaux-Arts architecture. The facade 1s completely original and,
although the interior has undergone at least two remodelings, the upper
walls, ceiling and skylighti are completely intact. Most of the original
marble partitions and much of the mahogany woodwork still remains. The
original floor was replaced during one of the remodelings.
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7. DESCRIPTION

The 12-panel ceiling surrounds a magnificent, domed skylight of
stained-glass{approximately 10' x 34') executed in green, brown,
mauve, blue and various shades of gold. The flattened leaf motif is
repeated in the glass.

The three-part entablature rests on fluted pilasters with Corin-
thian capitals. The cornice has egg-and-dart molding and dentils, and
the frieze is decorated with a foliated scroll pattern; the architrave
is undecorated. S

Each wall area delincated by the pilasters contains a rectangular
plaster panel with a smooth oval inset. The "frame" thus formed
around the oval is highly decorated with the honeycomb motif, a foliage
cartouche in each corner and a rosette boss in the middle of each side.
There are five panels along each of the two side walls and three on
the end wall opposite the entrance. In this end wall, the central
panel is wider and the oval contains the bank's original clock, which
is surrounded by elaborate plaster scrollwork.

The entrance wall features the original revolving door, recessed
into a solid marble entranceway which echoes the three-bay triumphal
arch form of the bank's exterior. The pilasters, attic story and
three-part entablature are all undecorated. Above this marble
entrance, which is flanked by an office on either side, is the semi-
circular stained-~glass window surrounded by egg-and-dart molding.

The small circular stained~glass windows above the two flanking
offices are surrounded by elaborate foliage plaster scrollwork.

Of the two side offices, only the President's office still
retains the mahogany enclosure. Again, egg-and-dart molding occurs
in the cornice line. The frieze has a fleur-de-lis design.and the
pilasters have lonic capitals and ribbon and wheat-ear drop carvings.
The mirrored door also has egg-and-dart molding.

Although the interior has been remodeled at least twice, most of
the material above head level is still in its original state. The
major changes have been the floor and the tellexr cages. The original
floor of hexagonal tiles has been replaced with a plainer one of
rectangular stone blocks. - A photo taken in the mid-1920's shows the
original teller cages running around three walls in a "U" shape. .
Those along the left wall have been removed completely to enlarge the
lobby and to grant a more spacious entrancecway to the adjoining

(to continuation shect #2)
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7e DESCRIPTION

Trust Department(thls bulldlng was also designed by the firm of T. J.
Collins & Son in 1922). The remaining teller spaces along the right
wall and far wall still have the waist-high marble partitions, but
the elaborate grillwork teller cages are gone, replaced during cne

of the remodelings with much plainer grilles.

The original building had a small, rectangular service bay at
the back of the main room. This bay has been remodeled and enlarged
to accomodate clerical workers and a drive-up teller window.

WE
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10, GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

Verbal Boundary Description - 12-)/ West Beverley Street

Legal Description - €ity Engineer's Map #375, 1958, RBlock DD, Lot 4.
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